

ACQUISITION QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

1. Is there an incumbent contractor, and if so, what is the name of the company?

Yes, the incumbent contractor information is provided as follows:

Maden Tech Consulting, Inc.

2110 Washington Blvd.

Arlington, VA 22204

2. If there is an incumbent, are they still eligible to bid?

The incumbent no longer has 8(a) eligibility.  Therefore, the incumbent is not eligible to submit an offer in the role of prime contractor for this requirement.

3. What is the contract number for the current contract, if any?

The Database and Wide Contract No. is GS00K97AFD2100/K1103BJ4107.

The Help Desk/Local Area Network (LAN) Contract No. is GS00K97AFD2100/K1103BJ4106.

4. What are the positional titles of the current personnel?

This information is proprietary to the incumbent’s technical proposal.

5. What is the projected value of the new contract? 

This information is not available to offerors. 

6. Is this solicitation open only to "Small Business" only or can anyone respond?

This solicitation is set-aside only for certified 8(a) eligible firms.

7. What NAICS code and size standard will be used?

The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code is 514513. The size standard is $21,000,000.

8. What are the terms of the current contract?

The delivery orders awarded for both Help Desk and LAN Support services and Database Management Wide Area Support functions consist of a three month base period and a nine month option period, which is extended through 6/31/04.

9. Why did the Government change the NAICS Code and Dollar Size Standard for this procurement? 

Administrative error.  The corrected code is reflected in #7.

10. Does the incumbent meet or exceed the contractual requirements?

This is past performance information and not available to offerors as public information.

11. Is there a requirement that interested vendors should have a local presence to be considered?

No

12. How long has the existing contractor/incumbent held this contract?

Since February 2003

13. Will the government consider responding to questions prior to the bidders conference in the event that answers to the questions cause more questions.

No

14. When is the current contract expiring? Are the acquisition milestones listed in the presolicitation notice still good? If the answers are posted after the pre proposal conference, there will be less than two weeks time between the date of posting answers and the proposal due date. We request a 3 week window between posting the answers and the proposal due date. 

The current contract expires 6/31/04. Yes, the milestones are still good. The proposal due date will not be extended. 

15. Is it possible to participate in the above solicitation with the consideration that we are scheduled to receive 8(a) certification by late March?

Yes, however you must be 8(a) certified at submission of the proposal.

16. Are there any restrictions on working as a subcontractor to an 8(a)?  My firm does not fit the criteria for 8(a) status? 

No, as long as the prime contractor performs at least 50% of the work.

17. Why is this project being solicited to an 8(a) firm?

This procurement is in the best interest of the Government, and meets its socioeconomic program goals.

18. What is the proposed date for the release of the RFP?  

The solicitation was posted on the FEDBIZOPPS on 2/25/04.

19. Is the above solicitation fully funded?

Yes, for the base year.  Funding for the option periods is contingent upon congressional budgetary approval.
20. Paragraph G.2 Billing Instructions, Page 53: - How frequently can we bill FRA?

Semi-monthly 

21.  Will a particular contract vehicle be used for this opportunity?

A Firm Fixed price contact is anticipated. 

22. Do we need to acknowledge the individual Amendments to the Solicitation received, if any, in writing other than acknowledgement on SF 33 / Line 14?

Yes, attach a signed copy of each amendment with submission of the SF 33 and your proposal.

23. I wanted to inquire about the network security piece of this request. I wanted to find out if there was an option to bid only on the security piece?

No 

24. What are anticipated labor hours?

A performance-based service contract will result from this solicitation.  In accordance with this type of contract, the offeror is required to determine the labor hours it deems necessary to perform the services.

25. Who is the Technical Representative for the above solicitation? 

This is not public information.

26. What was the amount of award for the current contract?

  
It should be noted that the current contract was awarded under the GSA Fast program.  Thus, a delivery order was awarded for Help Desk and LAN Support services in the amount of 2,027,369.

A separate delivery order was also awarded for Database and Wide Area Network Support services in the amount of $1,606,673.

27. Section C.11.5 is missing.  Should we renumber the following sections or is something missing? 

An amended page will be provided that indicates the section is left blank intentionally.

28. The example of labor categories and hours in Attachment B indicates 1872 hours. The basic work year consists of 2080. Can you tell us how you arrived at 1872 hours (e.g., how are the 208 hours accounted for)?

The 208 hours consist of the following:

Three (3) weeks leave and eleven (11) federal holidays equal 208 hours.  Therefore, 2080 hours minus 208 hours equal 1872 hours.

29. Will task orders be issued by Contract Period or by functional area by Contract Period?

Neither, this is not a task order contract. This is a Firm Fixed Price contract.

30. Is the current contract available for public review?

Yes, the aforementioned delivery orders are available via a FOIA request to the FRA.

31. Section F.2 REPORTS states “The contractor shall provide the reports as described in the attached Statement Work, Section 4.13, Report Requirements.”

Section 4.13 referenced above was erroneously included.  This statement is revised as follows:

“The contractor shall provide the reports as described in the attached Statement of Work.”

This will be amended via FEDBIZOPPS.

32. Is there a level of estimate on the number of hours or full time equivalents (FTEs) staff required for this project? Only estimate we have noticed is 500 hours for Rapid Response and Sustained Engineering Support.

This a performance-based service contract. The offeror is required to provide the labor categories and labor hours it deems necessary to perform the required service.  The 500 hours are on a “not to exceed” basis and to be used in emergency situations.

33. Will there be an opportunity to submit additional questions following the pre-proposal conference?

Additional questions must be submitted by 12:00 noon COB 3/23/04, and the answers will be posted to the FEDBIZOPPS via amendment.

34. Is there a total limit to the number of pages for Section L.10 (a)(2) of the solicitation – Key Personnel? 

Resumes are limited to 2 pages each and there is a 1 page limit for the introductory summary of the key personnel section.

35. Do we have to provide the “letters of commitment” for key personnel (Section L.5) with our proposal?  

Yes

36. In Section G.3 of the solicitation, TAR 1252.215-70 KEY PERSONNEL AND/OR FACILITIES (OCT 1994), the Key Personnel under this Contract will be determined at the time of contract award. Please clarify?

For the successful offeror, the names of key personnel will be incorporated in Section G.3 of the contract award.

37. In Section L.6 of the solicitation, CONFIRMATION OF PROPOSED KEY PERSONNEL (SEP 1994), the following certificate shall be provided upon request by the Contracting Officer should discussions be required and revised and/or if final proposal revisions are requested. Please clarify? 

The certificate is a written statement signed by the offeror’s president, certifying that the proposed key personnel are still available for performance under any contract resulting from this solicitation, and that letters of commitment are still valid. This certification is based on written or oral confirmation received by the offeror, within 30 days, from each individual, and/or a memorandum to the file documenting oral confirmation of that individual’s availability.  Key personnel are an evaluation factor and FRA must insure the proposed personnel are still available for this requirement. 

38. Do contingency agreements of key staff count against our page counts? 

No

39. Do resumes count against page counts?

There is a page limitation for each resume and that is the only page limitation that will be effected.

40. Can tables and/or charts be single-spaced? 

Yes

41. Since incumbents cannot talk to us, you are forcing us to utilize non-incumbents as key staff and effectively unemploying some of the incumbent staff.” Please explain and clarify?

The FRA has not restricted the incumbent personnel in any way.

42. Companies do not have technical staff sitting around waiting for a contract to be awarded.  We must recruit.  The question is do we recruit now or after award.  If you force us to recruit now you are effectively getting rid of incumbent employees since they cannot talk to us without fear of loosing their jobs? 

See #41

43. Section M, paragraph 2 (Key Personnel) states that the offeror must clearly demonstrate education, experience, and/or technical expertise to perform requirements expressed in the SOW and in Section L5 and L6.  Question:  The Government did not provide any specifics or information about education, experience or technical expertise within the SOW or Section L5 and L6.  Please clarify. 

The Government does not have any minimum education, experience or technical expertise requirements for the key personnel.  FAR  37.6 precludes minimum requirements in a Performance Based Statement of Work contract. 

44. Section L.5 Paragraph (a) states that Key Personnel require written, signed (by employee/contingency hire), and dated letters of commitment; and Paragraph (b) states that letters of commitment must be submitted for contingency hires, defined as a person not currently employed but who have executed a binding letter of commitment for employment with the offeror; but the next sentence in the same paragraph states, “New Hires (which would be contingent employees) may not be proposed for Key Personnel”.   Please clarify. 

 
Key personnel must be current employees or contingent hires with written letters of commitment.  New hires should not be proposed as key personnel.

45. Section L.5. Please confirm.  Both current employees and contingency hires may be proposed as key personnel and require letters of commitment.  Please clarify the distinction between key personnel, contingency hires and new hires.

Key Personnel are current employees and contingent hires that have signed letters of commitment.

A contingency hire is defined as an individual who has signed a commitment letter/agreement to work in the event the contract is awarded to the offeror.

A new hire is defined as a specified or unspecified individual to fill an empty billet who is neither identified as a current employee of the offeror (or proposed subcontractor) nor as a contingency hire.

46. Section L.10 (b) (2) Do you have a preferred format for the resumes?

No 

47. On page 74 Section L.5 Key Personnel it states: 

“a) All proposed key personnel require written, signed (by employee/contingency hire), and dated letters of commitment.  The Offeror shall provide letters of commitment from current employees that state they: (1) will remain employed by the Offeror; and (2) will work on the resultant contract if awarded to the Offeror.”

We understand this to understand “current employees” to mean the Offeror’s current employees NOT the incumbents employees currently working on site – is this correct? In other words, if there are incumbent employees, are we required to submit incumbent resumes with their letter of commitment?

Yes

48. The RFP does not indicate which personnel are Key Personnel?  Is this left up to the vendor to propose?

Yes

49. Section L.10 (4) requires a type size not smaller than 12 point proportional for text. May we be allowed to use a type size not smaller than 8 point for tables and graphics?

Yes

50. Do the commitment letters count towards page limitation?

No

51. Are resumes required for key staff only?

Yes

52. Is the successful contractor encouraged to hire incumbent staff? Is the contractor allowed to replace a proposed key staff with the incumbent staff if the qualifications are similar?

This is a performance-based statement of work and therefore a business decision of the offeror.

53. I would like my name to be added to the list of interested bidders to receive future correspondence regarding the solicitation. 

Offerors may register the name of company and its NAICS code on FEDBIZOPPS.

54. The pre-solicitation notice mentions that DOT will down select to a reduced number of companies based on Technical approach and price:  How many companies will they down select to?

The Contracting Officer will reduce the number of companies to the most highly rated proposals to establish the preliminary competitive range.

55. Can we have additional pages in the technical proposal to provide introductory information to the technical proposal? 

No

56. Can the proposal be single spaced 12 pages?

 No

57. Can the Management Plan be 10 pages single-spaced?

No

58.  RFP Section L.10 (a) (1) indicates that three volumes are required; Volume 1: Technical Proposal that includes the Technical Approach, Key Personnel, and Management Plan (Staffing Plan), Volume 2: Past Performance Information and Oral Presentation Slides, and Volume 3: Cost Proposal.  However, Section L.10 (5) (a) (4), Past Performance Information, indicates that Past Performance Information is to be included as part of the Technical Proposal.  Please clarify where Past Performance information should be presented in proposals.

This will be amended via an amendment to the FEDBIZOPPS.

 A total of four volumes are required as follows:

Volume I: Technical Approach, Key Personnel, Management Plan (Staffing Plan)

Volume II: Oral Presentation Slides

Volume III: Past Performance

Volume IV: Cost Proposal

59. Section C.5.15, requires a discussion about transition. Would it be possible to include a brief discussion of Transition within the 25 page Technical Approach, and provide an Appendix with a complete transition plan? A similar question relates to the inclusion of our Quality Assurance Plan within the 10-page limit for the Management Plan.

Yes

60. In Section L.7 Oral Presentation, can oral presentation slides be delivered only by those companies attending orals?  It seems like a waste of effort to require all companies to develop and deliver oral materials if only a "limited number" will be attending orals.

No
61. Section L.7 Oral Presentation in the last paragraph states that the offeror must submit an electronic copy (CD format) of it PowerPoint presentation and four (4) paper copies to the Government in a sealed package along with its technical and cost proposal; but Section L.10 Content of Proposal does not describe the content for the Oral Presentation slides.  Please clarify.

The content of the oral presentation slides should provide an overview of the written proposal, i.e. it is the offerors opportunity to highlight the strong points of its proposal, and provides a forum to interface with the Government’s evaluation panel.

62. Section L.7 - Should we submit the oral presentation along with the proposal response.  If so, please specify whether the oral presentation is a separate volume or part of the past performance volume.

See #58

63. Oral Presentation: Is there a limitation on the number of slides to be presented?

There is no limitation on the number of slides presented; however, there is a time limit on the length of the oral presentation.  Any slides not presented will not be considered.

64. How much weight will orals have in the evaluation compared to the written proposal?

Less than past performance.

65. RFP Section L.7 (e), page 76 states that a maximum of five contractor personnel may attend the oral presentation, and that four of the five may participate in the oral presentation.  It also states that all of the participants shall be proposed key personnel.  Are all five personnel who attend the oral presentation required to be key personnel or just the four participating in the presentation? Will the fifth person attending the oral presentation be allowed to contribute technical information during the question and answer period?

No, only the four presenters are required to be key personnel.

66. Is there a total limit to the number of pages for Section L.11 of the solicitation Cost/Price Proposal?

No

67. Given the specifics provide in Section L for what has to be provided in the Technical Proposal will the Government change the page limit and layout to single space 50 pages?

No

 

68. Section L.3 it states that this contract will be "Firm Fixed Price". In section C.7.2 it discusses "Outcomes" with incentives and penalties. In section Form 2 is a Report Card. In a FFP contract the fee is not broken out. Please explain how this contract will be administered without a fee break out?  If the intent is to somehow combine the two types of contracts please explain how this will be done? The intent is to have an Award Fee contract please tell us what the minimum fee will be or should we propose a minimum fee. The report card provides a grade only.  What are the incentives/penalties?  Are they above/below the minimum fee? Is this type of contract currently in place and how is it administered?  If the fee is to be broken-out can you provide an example of how our cost proposal should be presented?

There is no award fee associated with a Firm Fixed Price contract but profit is included.

The incentive and penalties in this case are not monetary in value.  The incentive of successfully meeting all the performance outcomes, outputs, and tasks will be to exercise the option period(s). The penalties would be not to exercise the option period(s).

The Government has no intention to award any type of award fee type contract resulting from this solicitation. Therefore, the questions concerning combining contracts, fee breakout, and minimum fee/maximum fee are irrelevant to the requirements of the solicitation.

69. The Governments Section C SOW is 46 pages of single spaced typed requirements. Section L, paragraph L.10 (a)(1), Technical Approach allows only 25 pages of double spaced type (which amounts to less than 15 pages of single spaced type) to respond to the SOW. These are too few pages in order to provide a competitive response. Please reconsider your page limitation and open it up to at least 45 pages.

No

70. In Section M.3 of the solicitation, Technical Proposal Evaluation, (3) Management Plan, it states that primary preference for initial staffing of non-key personnel at time of contract award is for current employees of with personnel for whom the offeror has binding contingency hiring agreements vice recruiting. In Section L.10 (a) 3 of the solicitation, Management Plan (Staffing Plan), next to last sentence, you say you do not want contingency agreements submitted.  However, it appears you would rather see contingency letters rather than recruiting.  We are confused. Please clarify?

Please refer to the answers provided under questions #44 and #45.

71. If multiple companies get outstanding performance in Technical and Past performance, will cost become the deciding criteria?

Yes, if the ratings are identical.

72. Section M.3 states the evaluation criteria for the past performance that the Government reserves the right not to evaluate or consider for award the entire proposal from an offeror which fails to provide the past performance information or which fails to assert that it has no relevant directly related or similar past performance experience. Will the government consider proposals that include the statement of no past performance in the related areas? Will the government downgrade such proposals in any manner?

Yes, the Government will consider proposals that include statements of no past experience.

No, offerors lacking relevant past performance history will receive a neutral rating in this area.  

73. It seems like cost is not a selection criteria. However, the contract is a fixed price contract. A BETTER rating in technical with “Exceptional” past performance but with “higher” cost is likely to be selected rather than the one with OUTSTANDING technical approach and “Neutral” past performance with lower prices. Is that a true statement?

This will be determined during the evaluation process with all evaluation factors taken into consideration.

74. Is FRA experience a factor in the evaluation? If so, how heavily will this be weighted?

No

75. Is DOT experience a factor in the evaluation? If so, how heavily will this be weighted?

No

76. Section I.7 (Special 8(a) Subcontract Conditions) indicates that SBA has entered into a contract agreement the Federal Railroad Administration and Adeptech Systems, Inc.  Question - Is Adeptech Systems, Inc. the current subcontractor on the contract with Maden Tech Consulting; and will the government enter into another subcontract with Adeptech Systems for the new contract?  Please clarify. 

Section I.7 will be amended in the FEDBIZOPPS to delete the subcontractor information. The contract agreement language with Adeptech Systems, Inc. is not applicable to this solicitation. 
 

77. What is the Procurement Schedule?

Milestones are posted on the FEDBIZOPPS
78. Section B.1 (b) states that the "Contractor shall be paid the respective firm-fixed-price for each exercised performance period identified below for successful performance.”  The Base Contract and Options I and II are each one-year in length.  Does the Government anticipate paying the Contractor in twelve even monthly increments? 

Payments will be made upon submission of invoices.  Invoices can be paid as frequently as twice a month.  Invoices are normally submitted once a month.
 
79. Section B identifies Base and Option periods equivalent to a 5-year period of performance if all options are exercised.  However, Section I.1 (b) states that the total duration of this contract, including options shall not exceed thirty-six (36) months.  Please clarify.

The total duration of the contract is sixty (60) months.

This will be amended via an amendment in the FEDBIZOPPS.

80. Are the Total Estimated Prices starting on page two (e.g., 0001, 0002, etc.) final prices or will there be further pricing negotiations after the contract is awarded?

No, unless conditions requiring a change order exist.

81. Reference:  B-1, Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs.  Please clarify the term “Total Estimated Price” as it refers to the firm fixed price that the contractor is required to provide in their proposal.

The term “Total Estimated Price” is revised to read “Total Firm Fixed Price.” This will be amended via an amendment to the FEDBIZOPPS.

82. Since it is Firm Fixed Price (as indicated in Section B) why are the details on fringe, overhead and G&A required?

To determine cost/price reasonableness of an offeror’s proposal in the event adequate competition is not achieved.

83. Is there a total limit to the number of pages for Section L.10 (a) (4) of the solicitation– Past Performance Information? 

There is a 3 page limit for the past performance information provided for each contract referenced under this section. There is no limit on the contracts proposed as long as those contracts are similar in scope to the subject effort and were held within the last 5 years but not older than three years after completion.

84. Past Performance Information: Are there any guidelines on the number of past performance references that should be included? Is there a recommendation on minimum and maximum number of references? Also is there a page limitation on the references?

References shall not exceed three per contract.

85. Section M.3 states the evaluation criteria for the past performance and includes that the Past performance of "key personnel," if any, shall not be considered. Will the government consider the past performance of the company owners as part of the offeror’s past performance?

No

86. In considering price, is DOT using an existing schedule (GSA, etc.) to determine competitiveness?  Or, is DOT comparing the prices of various proposal submissions to determine competitiveness?

No, DOT is not using an existing GSA schedule.  Proposed prices, number of offers as well as all of the evaluation subfactors and factors outlined in the solicitation will be evaluated in accordance with Far Part 15.305.
87. Are the subcontractor costs submission requirements (direct labor rates, indirect rates, etc.) to be submitted in separate sealed envelopes?  There is no language to that effect in the proposal instructions. 

Yes, however if the subcontractor/prime contractor relationship is such that the subcontractor does not object to the prime contractor having access to its proprietary burden rates, the method of submittal is at the discretion of the subcontractor.

88. Can we submit a no-cost subcontractor?

No, for any services the Government receives, there must be consideration provided.

89. Section L.11 - How many copies of the cost proposal should be submitted?

The offerors must submit one (1) original and four (4) paper copies of the cost proposal.

90. For the cost proposal there is no prescribed format just required data. It mentions that G&A and Overhead etc. needs to be defined for both subcontractors and prime contractors. Does the price proposal need to include the breakdown of what is included and how it is derived or is just the summary total requested in L.11 (a) (8)? 

Yes, a breakdown should be included.  This breakdown is needed as a back up to establish price reasonableness in the event of inadequate competition.

91. If a subcontractor does not want to share fringe, overhead and G&A details to the prime contractor, can they directly submit them to the contracting officer?

Yes, as long as the prime contractor and subcontractor are in agreement with the method of submittal.  All proposals must be submitted by the closing date and time of the solicitation.

92. How much cost should be included for ODC? Without knowing the details on travel requirements, etc. it is tough to estimate ODC. 

The estimated total “not to exceed” amount for ODCs is $103,360 for the base year. This total amount is inclusive of offsite storage, travel and overtime.  The solicitation will be amended via an amendment in the FEDBIZOPPS to add a new Not-To-Exceed (NTE) line item for other direct costs.

93. Is there a specific format for the development of cost estimate?

No

94. 123. Reference: C.7.2.1. through C.7.2.10. The tables refer to, “incentives” and “penalties”.  How will the incentives and penalties be calculated and applied to the fixed prices in Section B.1.

The incentives and penalties are based on the Government exercising or not exercising the option period(s) under the contract.

95. 124. Paragraph C.2 Scope, Page 4: Travel.  “Occasional travel to selected FRA COOP, Regional and Contractor sites may be required.  In such cases, the Contractor shall work with the FRA Program Manager to determine the number and costs of trips required.”  Does the FRA expect the offeror to include travel in the cost proposal?  If yes, will the FRA provide an estimate of the travel required?

Yes, FRA’s expects offerors to include travel in their cost proposal.  Travel for the base year is $50,000.

96. What are the “Rules of Engagement” for both FRA and incumbent personnel during the transition period?

The FRA IT Manager (and COTR) as well as staff will work closely with incumbent contractor personnel and the awardee to insure a smooth transfer of knowledge and procedures.

97. Will the Government allow teaming to satisfy all of the requirements of the RFP?

Yes, subcontracting teaming arrangements are permitted as long as the participants meet SBA requirements for this arrangement.

98. Will past performance from subcontractors be allowed and given the same weight as past performance as a prime contractor?

See Section M.3 (4) (a).

99. Will you require W2 employees or independent contracts working on this project?

Context of question is not understood but the interested party who proposed this question may pose this question at the appropriate time during the conference.  Please be more specific at that time. 

100. What personnel positions does the FRA consider key personnel besides the Program Manager?

Given this is Performance Based Service Contract, the offeror is responsible for proposing the key personnel it deems necessary to perform the services outlined in the solicitation.

101. In Section C, are the current service levels being met consistently?

This is past performance information and not available to offerors as public information.

102. Paragraph C.5.1, Page 6: “When specific deadlines for small projects or training are defined, an amendment shall be issued to supplement this delivery order.”  Will this be within the contract funded level or will this be over and above the contract scope?

The solicitation is incorrectly stated.  Yes, small projects or training are included in the estimated funding level for this effort.

103. What is the FRA procurement process for new hardware and software?

All hardware and software will be acquired in accordance with the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) procurement procedures. 

104. How much time between contract award and start date will there be?

The anticipated date of award for the new contract is 6/30/04. The anticipated start date is 7/1/04 to include a transition period of 30 days.

105. What is expected/required of the incumbent with regards to transitioning in the new contract?

See Section C.5.15 of the solicitation.
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